Approved: March 21, 2002

Date

#### MINUTES OF THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE.

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson John Vratil at 9:40 a.m. on March 20, 2001 in Room 123-S of the Capitol.

All members were present.

Committee staff present:

Gordon Self, Revisor Mike Heim, Research Mary Blair, Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee:

David Falletti, Detective, Riley County Police Department

Others attending: see attached list

Minutes of the March 19<sup>th</sup> meeting were approved on a motion by Senator Schmidt, seconded by Senator Umbarger. Carried.

### HB 2178–concerning controlled substances; re: gamma hydroxybutyric acid (GHB)

The Chair reviewed <u>HB 2178</u>, a bill which amends the criminal code by adding various components of GHB to the law prohibiting unlawful administration of a substance. <u>Senator Adkins moved to pass the bill out favorably, Senator Schmidt seconded.</u> Following discussion there was general consensus to not adopt an amendment proposed by Harvey County Attorney Matt Treaster which increased the penalty for unlawfully administering GHB without a person's consent to a drug severity level three felony. <u>Motion carried</u>.

## HB 2175-re: judgment liens

Senator Schmidt reviewed a bill he introduced earlier, <u>SB 139</u>, which related to liability for domestic animal activity. He described the history of the bill and the amendments which were added to it since it's inception stating that it was his desire to amend the provisions of <u>SB 139</u> into <u>HB 2175</u>. Following brief discussion <u>Senator Schmidt moved to amend SB 139</u> into <u>HB 2175</u>, <u>Senator Goodwin seconded</u>. <u>Carried</u>. <u>Senator Schmidt moved to pass the bill out favorably as amended</u>, <u>Senator Goodwin seconded</u>. <u>Carried</u>.

### HB 2173-concerning expungement

The Chair reviewed <u>HB 2173</u>, a bill which provides that expungement of a person's criminal arrest file will be confidential and, in addition, the KBI is charged with notifying the FBI of the order of expungement. He discussed an amendment offered by the municipal courts who object to being included in the bill citing liability and fiscal concerns. Following discussion <u>Senator Gilstrap moved to amend HB 2173</u> by deleting <u>Section 1</u> so that provisions in the bill do not apply to municipal courts, <u>Senator Oleen seconded</u>. Motion failed. Following discussion <u>Senator Goodwin moved to pass the bill out favorably</u>, <u>Senator Schmidt seconded</u>. <u>Carried</u>.

# HB 2136-re: criminal history classification

The Chair reviewed <u>HB 2136</u>, a bill which amends the law regarding the computation of a defendant's criminal history for the crime of involuntary manslaughter while driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs. <u>Senator Adkins</u> moved to amend the bill by deleting a provision to discount or decay a DUI conviction after a period of ten years with no intervening violations, Senator Goodwin seconded. <u>Carried</u>. <u>Senator Adkins moved to pass the bill out favorably as amended</u>. <u>Senator Goodwin seconded</u>. <u>Carried</u>.

## HB 2176-re: unlawful sexual relations

The Chair reviewed <u>HB 2176</u>, an SRS bill, which expands the crime of unlawful sexual relations to include SRS employees who engage in consensual sexual activity with the victim age 16 or older. He stated that <u>HB 2445</u> regarding teachers who engage in prohibited sexual activity with a 16 or 17 year old student enrolled in the school where the offender teaches was amended by the House into this bill. Lengthy discussion followed. <u>Senator Pugh moved to amend HB 2176</u> by deleting the language regarding teachers, Senator Goodwin seconded. <u>Motion failed Senator Adkins moved to pass the bill out favorably, Senator Schmidt seconded. Carried.</u>

## HB 2328-re: abusing toxic vapors; possession of a controlled substance

Conferee Falletti testified in support of <u>HB 2328</u>, a bill which would make the intentional use of inhaling certain toxic vapors for the purpose of "getting high," a B nonperson misdemeanor. The Conferee reviewed national surveys and local statistics which indicate that approximately 20% of 8<sup>th</sup> graders have abused inhalants at least once in their lives. He stated 37 states have enacted legislation to address this problem and he proposed Kansas do the same including mandating abuse education to children of all ages. (<u>attachment 1</u>) Committee discussed the House floor amendment to this bill. Following lengthy discussion there was consensus to delay action on this bill until Committee was more fully informed about the House amendment.

## **HB 2154–concerning providers of care services**

The Chair briefly reviewed <u>SB 354</u>, a bill relating to placement of facilities in cooperation and consultation with municipalities and the public and asked the Committee to consider whether or not to amend it into <u>HB 2154</u>. Following lengthy discussion, <u>Senator Haley moved to amend SB 354 into HB 2154</u>, <u>Senator Donovan seconded</u>. Further discussion followed whereby, due to time constraints, the Chair opted to take no action on the motion at this time.

The meeting adjourned at 10:32 a.m. The next scheduled meeting is March 21, 2001.